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GENERAL PLASTIC INDUSTRIAL CO., LTD. 

2024 Annual General Shareholders’ Meeting Procedure 

I. Call to Order

II. Chairperson Remarks

III. Reported Matters

IV. Acknowledged Matters

V. Matters for Discussion

VI. Extraordinary Motion

VII. Adjournment
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GENERAL PLASTIC INDUSTRIAL CO., LTD. 

2024 Annual General Shareholders’ Meeting Agenda 

Time: 10:00 a.m., Wednesday, June 19, 2024 

Location: No. 388, Sec. 2, Dazhi Road, Wuchi District, Taichung, Taiwan (3F, Taichung Harbor Hotel) 

I. Call the Meeting to Order

II. Chairperson Remarks

III. Reported Matters

(I) Business Report for 2023.

(II) The Audit Committee’s Review Report of the 2023 Financial Accounting Ledgers and 
Financial Statements.

(III) Report on Remuneration of Employees and Directors for 2023.

(IV) Report on Cash Dividends from Earnings Distribution for 2023.

IV. Acknowledged Matters

(I) The Company's Financial Accounting Ledgers and Financial Statements for 2023.

(II) The Company’s Earnings Distribution for 2023.

V. Matters for Discussion

(I) Amendments to the Company’s “Articles of Incorporation”.

VI. Extraordinary Motion

VII. Adjournment
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Reported Matters

Report 1 

Cause: The Company's 2023 Business Report is presented for review. 

Description: Please refer to Attachment 1 (page 6) for the 2023 Business Report. 

Report 2 

Cause: The Audit Committee’s Review Report of the 2023 Financial Accounting Ledgers and 
Financial Statements is presented for review. 

Description: Please refer to Attachment 2 (page 7) for the 2023 Review Report of the Audit Committee. 

Report 3 

Cause: Report on Remuneration of Employees and of Directors for 2023 is presented for review. 
Description: I. The remuneration to employees and directors for 2023 were approved by the Board of  

Directors on March 14, 2024.

II. For 2023, the employees' remuneration amounted to NT$28,157,000 and the directors'
remuneration amounted to NT$13,500,000, which were allotted in cash, totaling
NT$41,657,000.

Report 4 

Cause: Report on cash dividends from earnings distribution for 2023 is presented for review. 
Description: I. In accordance with Article 28-1 of the Company's Articles of Incorporation, the Board of

Directors is authorized to prepare a proposal for the distribution of earnings, of which cash
dividends are authorized to be distributed by resolution of the Board of Directors and
reported to the shareholders' meeting.

II. For this earnings distribution, the Company distributed NT$318,971,850 in cash dividends
to outstanding common stock. Based on the Company's current outstanding shares of
127,588,740, NT$2.5 shall be distributed for each share.

III. The cash dividends are calculated based on the shareholders' stockholdings as of the record
date of dividend distribution up to NT$1 (rounded down to the nearest dollar). Dividends
distributed under NT$1 will be recognized as “Other Income” of the Company.

IV. The Board of Directors has approved the payment of cash dividends to shareholders on May
9, 2024.



4 

Acknowledged Matters 

Proposal 1 

Cause: Acknowledgment of the Company's Financial Accounting Ledgers and Financial Statements for 2023. 
Description: I. The accompanying 2023 Parent Company Only Financial Statements and Consolidated

Financial Statements have been approved by the Board of Directors and audited by 
the attesting CPAs  Huang, Yu Ting and Tu, Chin Yuan of Ernst &Young Taiwan. In 
addition, the Business Report, Parent Company Only Financial Statements and 
Consolidated Financial Statements were reviewed by the Audit Committee and a 
written report was issued.

II. Please refer to Attachment 1 (page 6), Attachment 2 (page 7), Attachment 3 (page 8~17) and
Attachment 4 (page 18~28) for each of the respective financial statements for this proposal.

Resolution: 

Proposal 2 

Cause: Acknowledgment of the  Company's Earnings Distribution  for 2023. 

Description: I. The Board of Directors has approved the proposed distribution of the Company's 

earnings for 2023.
II. Please refer to Attachment 5 (page 29) for the table of earnings distribution for 2023.

Resolution: 
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Matters for Discussions

Proposal 1 

Cause: Discussion of amendments to the Company’s “Articles of Incorporation”.  
Description: In accordance with the Regulations Governing the Administration of Shareholder Services of 

Public Companies and the Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation Operation Directions for 
Compliance with the Establishment of Board of Directors by TWSE Listed Companies and 
the Board's Exercise of Powers, the Company's Articles of Incorporation are hereby 
amended and a comparison table of amendments to the Articles is attached as Attachment 6 
(page 30).Resolution: 

Extraordinary 

Adjournment 
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Attachment 1 

GENERAL PLASTIC INDUSTRIAL CO., LTD. 

Business Report 

During 2023, the global economy has not only been shrouded in the haze of COVID-19, and the conflict in 
Russia and Ukraine has not ceased, but countries around the world still make unremitting efforts to recover their 
economies. However, factors such as geopolitical risks and supply chain restructuring continue to hit the 
manufacturing industry hard. While the world's major economies have been hoping to stimulate the market 
economy through the stabilization of energy prices and adjustment of interest rates, the inflationary pressure on 
consumption still exists, resulting in an overhang of inventory in the market, which leads to the problem of 
inventory closeout and thus the manufacturing industry has fallen into a state of weakness. Amidst the dramatic 
changes in the external market, the Company’s net revenue for 2023 was NT$1,219,221 thousand, a decrease of 
18.03% over 2022 at NT$1,487,361 thousand. Net income for 2023 was NT$433,232 thousand, a decrease of 
36.16% over 2022 at NT$678,609 thousand. 

Global trade is still facing multiple challenges this year, including the intensification of the US-China 
technology conflict, the ongoing tensions in the Middle East extending to the Red Sea Crisis. Consequently, the 
market is worried about transportation disruptions and thus freight rates fluctuate. Despite the buoyant labor 
market, the Eurozone economy has slowed down due to the persistently high inflation rate. Meanwhile, the energy 
demand has also declined and the service and consumer markets have recovered only slowly. Although the global 
supply bottleneck has been temporarily eased, major countries have implemented tightening monetary policies in 
response to inflation, which has also slowed down the global economic growth and trade has remained weak. The 
Company's 2023 operating results were primarily driven by: 
I. Consumer demand in the main printing consumables market, the Euro Zone, slowly recovered and the

demand for the products gradually stabilized.
II. As an industry leader, we have mature and flexible supply chain planning capabilities to respond to market

changes and challenges. We actively improve the efficiency of inventory management and adopt flexible
pricing strategies to stabilize product prices and increase profits.

III. We also focus on the development of value-added services such as self-brand, filling powder for customers,
customized packaging design and transportation as designated by customers.

IV. Sustainable environmental protection has received much attention in many industries in Europe and around
the world. The Company values environmental friendliness, and continues to incorporate environmental
protection concepts into product design and marketing. Products such as recycled plastic toner cartridges
and recycling bins are launched, while actively promoting plastic reduction and green packaging.

V. We continue to enhance our intellectual property rights and build up a quality patent portfolio, so that our
products can smoothly compete in high patent-protected markets and remain competitive against peer
products to strengthen our market position. At present, the Company holds 20 patents in China, 35 in the
U.S., 15 in Germany, 7 in Japan, 28 in Taiwan, totaling 106, and another 15 are under application.

Looking to 2024, the global supply chain is gradually shifting to “localization.” Major brand machine 
manufacturers have gradually reduced the launch of new machines, especially in the advanced economy market, 
and the service life of the machines has gradually been extended. Meanwhile, the market demand for smaller and 
more powerful machines is increasing. As a result, the demand for new products in the market is ahead of schedule, 
and the price competition in the market is worse than before. The Company will continue to enhance the 
integration of resources in the Group's vertical marketing channels, from production, logistics, R&D, 
procurement and branding, the management will be further refined at all aspects, in order to maintain a high level 
of internal responsiveness and agility to the external market. Specifically, the Company will also continue to 
strive on: (1) deepening the dual-brand strategy of Katun and Cartridge Web to maintain a balanced strategic 
alliance between its own channels and key accounts in Europe and the U.S.; (2) actively strengthening brand 
partnerships with brand clients to gain more opportunities for OEM services; (3) actively evaluating the launch of 
environmentally friendly product lines for the European market, where the demand for compatible supplies and 
consumables is the highest; (4) strengthening the relationship with toner and chip suppliers; and (5) 
strengthening the relationship with the European market. (4) Strengthen integration with toner and chip suppliers; 
(5) Establish a project team to analyze and evaluate new business opportunities. General Plastic will continue
to develop new business opportunities, and strive to improve the Company's product brand and service
value, seeking the continuous growth in 2024.

Chairman: Wang, Jui Hung General Manager: Wang, Jui Chi Chief Accounting officer: Huang, Ching Hung 
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Attachment 2 

 General Plastic Industrial Co., Ltd.
The Audit Committee's Review Report 

The Board of Directors has duly prepared the Company’s Business Report, Financial Statements 
(including Consolidated Financial Statements) and Proposal for Earnings Distribution for 2023. The 
financial statements have been audited by the attesting CPAs Huang, Yu Ting and Tu, Chin Yuan of 
Ernst and Young Taiwan and an Independent Auditor’s Report has been issued thereon. 

The Company’s Business Report, Financial Statements (including Consolidated Financial 
Statements) and Proposal for Earnings Distribution for the 2023 were reviewed by the Audit Committee 
and found to be in order. In accordance with Article 14-4 of the Securities and Exchange Act and Article 
219 of the Company Act, the accompanying report has is hereby prepared and presented for review. 

Yours faithfully, 

2024 Annual General Shareholders’ Meeting, General Plastic Industrial Co., Ltd. 

The Audit Committee's Convener: 

March 14, 2024 

Huang, Jui Feng
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Attachment 3 
Independent Auditors' Report 

To: General Plastic Industrial Co., Ltd. 

Independent Auditor’s Report Translated from Chinese 

To GENERAL PLASTIC INDUSTRIAL CO., LTD. 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying parent company only balance sheets of GENERAL PLASTIC 
INDUSTRIAL CO., LTD. (the “Company”) as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, and the related parent 
company only statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the years 
ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, and notes to the parent company only financial statements, 
including the summary of material accounting policies (together “the parent company only financial 
statements”).  

In our opinion, the parent company only financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all 
material respects, the financial position of the Company as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, and its 
financial performance and cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, in conformity 
with the requirements of the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities 
Issuers. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audits in accordance with the Regulations Governing Financial Statement Audit and 
Attestation Engagements of Certified Public Accountants and the Standards on Auditing of the Republic 
of China. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Parent company only Financial Statements section of our report. We 
are independent of the Company in accordance with the Norm of Professional Ethics for Certified Public 
Accountant of the Republic of China (the “Norm”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with the Norm. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our 
audit of 2023 parent company only financial statements. These matters were addressed in the context of 
our audit of the parent company only financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, 
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.  

Inventory Valuation 

The Company specializes in manufacturing and selling toner cartridges of photocopiers, laser printers 
and OPC Drum Gears. The determination of the provisions for obsolete inventories involved a high level 
of management judgment, and were subject to uncertainty due to product diversity. Furthermore, the 
cost of inventory included direct labor, raw material, and overhead, and the calculation and allocation 
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were complex. Also, the allocation basis could have a material impact on the financial statements. As 
such, we determined this to be a key audit matter. Our audit procedures included, but were not limited 
to, understanding and testing the design and operating effectiveness of internal control over inventory 
cost and allowance for inventory; performing inventory price testing to verify the allocation of cost, 
direct labor, and overhead is reasonable; assessing the appropriateness of the policy of provision for 
excess and obsolete inventory by testing the accuracy of inventory ageing and analyzing movement of 
the ageing, analyzing the difference between the policy of the current year and the prior year, and 
analyzing the difference between the historical provisions and the actual write-off amount; verifying that 
inventories were valued at the lower of cost or net realizable value by comparing the book value of 
inventories at the balance sheet date with recent sales price on selected samples; verifying the existence 
and completeness of inventories by tracing items on the final inventory listing to the physical inventory 
compilation; attending inventory counts to understand the status of the inventories and evaluate the 
appropriateness of the excess and obsolescence provision. We also considered the appropriateness of the 
disclosure of inventory in Note 6 to the parent company only financial statements. 

Investments accounted for using the equity method- subsidiaries’ goodwill impairment 

The amount of goodwill of the Company and its subsidiaries was significant to the financial statements. 
The Company performed impairment testing on the cash-generating units according to the International 
Financial Reporting Standards. The recoverable amount of the cash-generating units has been 
determined based on the value in use because their fair value cannot be reliably measured. The 
impairment testing indicated that the value in the use of certain cash-generating units was higher than 
their carrying amount. Because the carrying amounts of goodwill were significant to the Company and 
its subsidiaries, the determination of value in use was complex, as it involved significant management 
judgment when making assumptions about cash flow forecasts. We identified goodwill impairment as a 
key audit matter. Our audit procedures include, but are not limited to, evaluating whether the components 
of the cash-generating units have significantly changed, including analyzing the sales model and regions 
involved; evaluating the management’s assessment approaches and assumptions of value in use; 
evaluating the reasonableness of key assumptions used by management, such as growth rates, discount 
rates, gross margin, and evaluating the reasonableness of key components of discount rates, such as cost 
of equity, company-specific risk premium and market risk premium by comparing them to other 
companies of similar size with the cash-generating units; interviewing management and assessing the 
reasonableness of assumptions used in their financial forecast, such as cash flows, gross margin, growth 
rates, the overall market and economic conditions; comparing the actual financials to date with 
previously forecast financials and analyzing the Company’s historical data and performance to assess 
the reasonableness of the cash flow forecast. We also assessed the adequacy of the disclosures related to 
the result of impairment test and assumption’s sensitivity in Notes 4 and 6 to the consolidated financial 
statements. 
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Revenue Recognition 

The primary source of income of the Company is derived from sale of OEM-compatible imaging 
consumables and supplies, such as toner cartridges and drum gears for office equipment. Based on the 
varying contract terms in different distribution channels and sales models, it is significant to determine 
the timing when the control of goods is transferred and performance obligation is satisfied for the parent 
company only financial statements. We identified revenue recognition as a key audit matter. Our audit 
procedures include, but are not limited to, understanding and testing the effectiveness of internal controls 
related to revenue recognition in the sales cycle; selecting samples to perform the test of details of the 
sales transactions; reviewing the performance obligations of the orders or contracts and confirming the 
timing of performance obligations satisfaction against the related supporting documents to verify the 
correctness of the timing of revenue recognition; performing the cut-off testing for periods before and 
after the balance sheet date; and conducting analytical procedures for goods sold based on product types, 
regions, monthly sales revenue, and gross margin. We also considered the appropriateness of the 
disclosure of operating revenue in Note 6 to the parent company only financial statements. 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Parent Company 
Only Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the parent company only financial 
statements in accordance with the requirements of the Regulations Governing the Preparation of 
Financial Reports by Securities Issuers and for such internal control as management determines is 
necessary to enable the preparation of parent company only financial statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.  

In preparing the parent company only financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the 
ability to continue as a going concern of the Company, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate 
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Those charged with governance, including the audit committee, are responsible for overseeing the 
financial reporting process of the Company. 
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Parent Company Only Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the parent company only financial 
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not 
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the Standards on Auditing of the Republic of 
China will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or 
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected 
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these parent company only financial 
statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing of the Republic of China, we exercise 
professional judgment and professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:  

1. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the parent company only financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

2. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the internal control of the Company.

3. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

4. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability to continue as a going concern of the
Company. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the parent company only financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the parent company only financial
statements, including the accompanying notes, and whether the parent company only financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

6. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Company to express an opinion on the parent company only financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We
remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we identify during our audit.  

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other 
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 
safeguards.  

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that 
were of most significance in the audit of 2023 parent company only financial statements and are therefore 
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes 
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter 
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should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would 
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

Huang, Yu Ting 

Tu, Chin Yuan 

Ernst & Young, Taiwan 

March 14, 2024 

Notice to Readers 
The accompanying parent company only financial statements are intended only to present the financial position, results of 

operations and cash flows in accordance with accounting principles and practices generally accepted in the Republic of China 

and not those of any other jurisdictions. The standards, procedures and practices to audit such parent company only financial 

statements are those generally accepted and applied in the Republic of China. 

Accordingly, the accompanying parent company only financial statements and report of independent auditors are not intended 

for use by those who are not informed about the accounting principles or Standards on Auditing of the Republic of China, 

and their applications in practice. As the financial statements are the responsibility of the management, Ernst & Young cannot 

accept any liability for the use of, or reliance on, the English translation or for any errors or misunderstandings that may 

derive from the translation. 



Assets Amount % Amount %

Current assets

 Cash and cash equivalents 4, 6(1) $175,900 3  $131,855 2  

 Financial assets measured at amortized cost, current 8 1,802  -  26,335  -  

 Notes receivable, net 6(2) 82  -  241  -  

 Accounts receivable, net 6(2) 103,543  1  77,226  1  

 Accounts receivable - related parties, net 6(2), 7 206,996  3  230,891  4  

 Other receivable 5,241  -  5,500  -  

 Inventories 4, 6(3) 181,704  3  195,768  3  

 Prepayments 11,258  -  6,766  -  

 Total current assets 686,526  10   674,582  10   

Non-current assets

 Investments accounted for using the equity method 4, 6(4) 4,672,126  69   4,342,974  70   

 Property, plant and equipment 4, 6(5), 8 1,246,272  19   1,098,113  18   

 Right-of-use assets 4, 6(15) 10,272  -  9,523  -  

 Investment property, net 4, 6(6) 13,596  -  13,596  -  

 Intangible assets 4, 6(7) 39,711  1  40,978  1  

 Deferred tax assets 4, 6(19) 16,874  -  22,977  -  

 Other non-current assets 51,419  1  36,825  1  

 Total non-current assets 6,050,270  90   5,564,986  90   

Total assets $6,736,796 100   $6,239,568 100   

(continued)

As of December 31,

GENERAL PLASTIC INDUSTRIAL CO., LTD.

PARENT COMPANY ONLY BALANCE SHEETS

December 31, 2023 and 2022

(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

English Translation of Parent Company Only Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese

2023 2022

Notes

(The accompanying notes are an integral part of the parent company only financial statements)
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Liabilities and Equity Amount % Amount %

Current liabilities

  Short-term loans 4, 6(8), 7 $1,955,000 29   $1,510,000 24   

  Short-term notes and bills payable 4, 6(9) 79,971  1   129,794  2   

  Contract liabilities, current 4, 6(14) 5,683  -  3,474  -  

  Notes payable -  -  163  -  

  Accounts payable 72,758   1   60,972   1   

  Accounts payable-related parties, net 7 817   -  1,922   -  

  Other payables 6(10), 7 152,516  2   155,282  2   

  Current tax liabilities 4 24,750  -  49,177  1   

  Lease liabilities, current 4, 6(15) 1,809  -  1,847  -  

  Current portion of long-term loans 4, 6(11) 171,250  3   95,000  2   

  Other current liabilities 2,154  -  3,394  -  

  Total current liabilities 2,466,708  36   2,011,025  32   

Non-current liabilities

  Long-term loans 4, 6(11) -  -  171,250  3   

  Deferred tax liabilities 4, 6(19) 53,900  1   12,146  -  

  Lease liabilities, non-current 4, 6(15) 8,607  -  7,783  -  

  Net defined benefit liabilities, non-current 4, 6(12) 56,064  1   63,921  1   

      Total non-current liabilities 118,571  2   255,100  4   

Total liabilities 2,585,279  38   2,266,125  36   

Equity

  Capital 6(13)

    Common stock 1,275,887  19   1,275,887  20   

  Additional paid-in capital 6(13) 1,213,799  18   1,213,799  20   

  Retained earnings 6(13)

  Legal reserve 582,539  9   514,355  8   

  Special reserve 114,265  2   212,520  4   

  Unappropriated earnings 885,403  13   697,509  11   

      Total retained earnings 1,582,207  24   1,424,384  23   

  Other components of equity

  Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations 94,375  1   60,844  1   
  Unrealized gains or losses from financial assets measured at fair value

  through other comprehensive income (13,992)   -  (13,994)   -  

  Gains or losses on hedging instruments (759) - 12,523  -  

      Total other components of equity 79,624  1   59,373  1   

Total equity 4,151,517  62   3,973,443  64   

Total liabilities and equity $6,736,796 100   $6,239,568 100   

English Translation of Parent Company Only Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese

2023 2022

Notes

(The accompanying notes are an integral part of the parent company only financial statements)

GENERAL PLASTIC INDUSTRIAL CO., LTD.

PARENT COMPANY ONLY BALANCE SHEETS (Continued)

December 31, 2023 and 2022

(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

As of December 31,
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Notes 2023 % 2022 %
Operating revenues 4, 6(14), 7 $1,219,221 100   $1,487,361 100   
Operating costs 6(3)(16), 7 (733,774)   (60) (896,668)  (60)  
Gross profit from operations 485,447  40   590,693  40   
  Unrealized gross profit (63,297)   (5) (111,417)  (7)  
  Realized gross profit 111,417  9  91,684                        6   
Net gross profit 533,567  44   570,960   39   
Operating expenses 6(16)
  Selling and marketing expenses (76,315)   (6)  (96,094)   (7)  
  General and administrative expenses (143,514)   (12) (128,334)  (9)  
  Research and development expenses (58,058)   (5)  (60,080)   (4)  
  Expected credit impairment losses 6(2) (1,969)  -  (4,491)   -  
    Total operating expenses (279,856)  (23) (288,999) (20)  
Operating Income 253,711  21   281,961  19   
Non-operating income and expenses 6(17), 7
  Interest income 1,302   -  2,466  -  
  Other income 46,409   4   43,263  3   
  Other gains and losses (1,290)  -  63,647  4   
  Finance costs (29,283)   (2)  (20,584)   (1)  
  Share of profit or loss of associates and joint ventures accounted 

  for using the equity method 6(4) 263,931  21   396,779  27   
    Total non-operating income and expenses 281,069 23   485,571 33   
Income from continuing operatins before income tax 534,780  44   767,532  52   
Income tax expense 4, 6(19) (101,548)   (8)  (88,923)   (6)  
Net income 433,232  36   678,609  46   

Other comprehensive income (loss) 6(18)
Items that may not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
  Remeasurements of defined benefit plans 6,607   1   4,042  -  
  Unrealized gains or losses from investments in equity instruments

  measured at fair value through other comprehensive income 2   -  (1,383)   -  
  Income tax related to items that may not be reclassified subsequently (1,321)   -  (808)   -  
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss

  Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations 42,017   3   341,277   23   
  Gains or losses on hedging instruments (13,282)   (1)  (854)   -  
  Income tax related to items that may be reclassified subsequently (8,486)  (1)  (67,147)   (5)  

Total other comprehensive income (loss), net of income tax 25,537   2   275,127  18   
Total comprehensive income $458,769 38   $953,736 64   

Earnings per share (NTD) 4, 6(20)
  Earnings per share-basic $3.40 $5.32

  Earnings per share-diluted $3.37 $5.28

For the year Ended December 31, 2023 and 2022

PARENT COMPANY ONLY STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

GENERAL PLASTIC INDUSTRIAL CO., LTD.

English Translation of Parent Company Only Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese

(The accompanying notes are an integral part of the parent company only financial statements)

For the Years Ended December 31,

(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Except for Earnings per Share)
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Legal Reserve Special Reserve
Unappropriated

Earnings

Exchange
Differences on
Translation of

Foreign
Operations

  Unrealized Gains
or Losses from

Financial Assets
Measured at Fair

Value through Other
Comprehensive

Income 

Gains or Losses on
Hedging

Instruments

Balance as of January 1, 2022 $1,275,887 $1,239,317 $480,826 $114,265 $377,110 $(213,286) $(12,611) $13,377 $3,274,885

 Appropriations and distributions of earnings, 2021:

 Legal reserve 33,529 (33,529) -   

 Special reserve 98,255 (98,255) -   

 Cash dividends (229,660) (229,660)

 Cash dividends from additional paid-in capital (25,518)   (25,518)

Net income in 2022 678,609 678,609

Other comprehensive income (loss), net of income tax in 2022 3,234  274,130  (1,383)   (854) 275,127 

Total comprehensive income (loss) -   -   -   -   681,843   274,130  (1,383)   (854) 953,736 

Balance as of December 31, 2022 $1,275,887 $1,213,799 $514,355 $212,520 $697,509 $60,844 $(13,994) $12,523 $3,973,443

Balance as of January 1, 2023 $1,275,887 $1,213,799 $514,355 $212,520 $697,509 $60,844 $(13,994) $12,523 $3,973,443

 Appropriations and distributions of earnings, 2022:

 Legal reserve 68,184 (68,184) -   
 Special reserve (98,255) 98,255 -   
 Cash dividends (280,695) (280,695)   

Net income in 2023 433,232   433,232   
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of income tax in 2023 5,286 33,531 2 (13,282) 25,537  
Total comprehensive income (loss) -   -   -   -   438,518   33,531  2   (13,282)  458,769   

Balance as of December 31, 2023 $1,275,887 $1,213,799 $582,539 $114,265 $885,403 $94,375 $(13,992) $(759) $4,151,517

English Translation of Parent Company Only Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese

Total Equity

Other Components of Equity

Common Stock

For the year Ended December 31, 2023 and 2022

(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Additional
Paid-in Capital

Retained Earnings

PARENT COMPANY ONLY STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

(The accompanying notes are an integral part of the parent company only financial statements)

GENERAL PLASTIC INDUSTRIAL CO., LTD.
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2023 2022 2023 2022

Cash flows from operating activities: Cash flows from investing activities:

　Net income before tax $534,780 $767,532      Acquisition of financial assets measured at amortized cost (5,116)  (24,520)  
  Proceeds from disposal of financial assets measured at amortized cost 29,649   -  
　 Acquisition of property, plant and equipment (187,011)  (191,645)  

　Depreciation 44,540   52,997   　 Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 81  20  

　Amortization 11,422   14,250   　 Return of capital from disposal of subsidiaries 11,636   620   

　Expected credit impairment losses 1,969   4,491   　 Acquisition of intangible assets (8,641)   (3,316)   

　Gain for market price decline, obsolete and slow-moving inventories (531)  (2,249)  　Increase in prepayments for equipment (27,144)   (31,477)   

　Financial costs 29,283   20,584   　 Increase in refundable deposits (3)   (5)   

　Interest income (1,302)  (2,466)   Net cash used in investing activities (186,549)  (250,323)  

　Share of profit of subsidiaries,associates and joint ventures (263,931)  (396,779)  Cash flows from financing activities:

　(Gain) loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment (38)  150       　 Increase in short-term loans 6,609,000 8,290,000

　Loss on disposal of intangible assets 479   289       　 Decrease in short-term loans (6,164,000)  (7,870,000)  

　Net unrealized gross (profit) loss (48,120)  19,733   　 Increase in short term notes and bills payable 1,173,734  1,252,143  

Changes in operating assets and liabilities: 　 Decrease in short term notes and bills payable (1,223,557)  (1,442,063)  

　Decrease (increase) in notes receivable 159   (101) Repayments of long-term loans (95,000)   (145,000)  

　(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable (4,391)  26,806   　 Cash dividends paid (280,695)  (255,178)  

　 (Increase) decrease in other receivables (221)  4,245     　 Repayment of leasing principal (1,965)  (1,879)  

　Decrease (increase) in inventories 14,595   (5,544)   Net cash generated from (used in) financing activities 17,517   (171,977)  

　(Increase) decrease in prepayments (4,492)  5,889   Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 44,045   (38,878)  

　Increase in contract liabilities 2,209   2,549   Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 131,855  170,733  

　 Decrease in notes payable (163)  (435)      Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $175,900 $131,855

　 Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 10,681   (40,098)  

　 Increase in other payables 3,592   4,441   

　 (Decrease) increase in other current liabilities (1,240)  264       

　 Decrease in defined benefit liabilities (1,250)  (7,047)  

Cash generated from operations 328,030  469,501  

　 Interest received 1,782   1,985   

　 Interest paid (28,810)  (20,169)  

　 Income tax paid (87,925)  (67,895)  

  Net cash generated from operating activities 213,077  383,422  

English Translation of Parent Company Only Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese

(The accompanying notes are an integral part of the parent company only financial statements)

For the Years Ended December  31,For the Years Ended December 31,

GENERAL PLASTIC INDUSTRIAL CO., LTD.

PARENT COMPANY ONLY STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the year Ended December 31, 2023 and 2022

(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

　Adjustments to reconcile net income before tax to net cash provided by
  (used in) operating activities:
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Attachment 4 

REPRESENTATION LETTER 

The entities that are required to be included in the combined financial statements of GENERAL 

PLASTIC INDUSTRIAL CO., LTD. as of and for the year ended December 31, 2023, under the 

Criteria Governing the Preparation of Affiliation Reports, Consolidated Business Reports and 

Consolidated Financial Statements of Affiliated  Enterprises are the same as those included in the 

consolidated financial statements prepared in conformity with the International Financial Reporting 

Standard 10 “Consolidated Financial Statements”. In addition, the information required to be disclosed 

in the combined financial statements is included in the consolidated financial statements. Consequently, 

GENERAL PLASTIC INDUSTRIAL CO., LTD. and subsidiaries do not prepare a separate set of 

combined financial statements.  

Hereby certified. 

GENERAL PLASTIC INDUSTRIAL CO., LTD. 

Wang, Jui Hung 

Chairman  

March 14, 2024 
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Independent Auditors’ Report Translated from Chinese 

To GENERAL PLASTIC INDUSTRIAL CO., LTD. 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of GENERAL PLASTIC 
INDUSTRIAL CO., LTD. and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, and 
the related consolidated statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for 
the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, 
including the summary of material accounting policies (together “the consolidated financial 
statements”).  

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material 
respects, the consolidated financial position of the Group as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, and its 
consolidated financial performance and cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, 
in conformity with the requirements of the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial 
Reports by Securities Issuers and International Financial Reporting Standards, International 
Accounting Standards, Interpretations developed by the International Financial Reporting 
Interpretations Committee or the former Standing Interpretations Committee as endorsed and became 
effective by Financial Supervisory Commission of the Republic of China. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audits in accordance with the Regulations Governing Financial Statement Audit 
and Attestation Engagements of Certified Public Accountants and the Standards on Auditing of the 
Republic of China. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are 
independent of the Group in accordance with the Norm of Professional Ethics for Certified Public 
Accountant of the Republic of China (the “Norm”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with the Norm. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in 
our audit of 2023 consolidated financial statements. These matters were addressed in the context of 
our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and 
we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.  

Inventory Valuation 

As of December 31, 2023, the amount of net inventories of the Group was NTD959,522 thousand, 
which represented 11% of the total consolidated assets and was significant to the financial statements. 
The Group specializes in manufacturing and selling toner cartridges of photocopiers, laser printers 
and OPC Drum Gears. The determination of the provisions for obsolete inventories involved a high 
level of management judgment, and were subject to uncertainty due to product diversity. Furthermore, 
the cost of inventory included direct labor, raw material, and overhead, and the calculation and 
allocation were complex. Also, the allocation basis could have a material impact on the financial 
statements. As such, we determined this to be a key audit matter. Our audit procedures included, but 
were not limited to, understanding and testing the design and operating effectiveness of internal 
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control over inventory cost and allowance for inventory; performing inventory price testing to verify 
the allocation of cost, direct labor, and overhead is reasonable; assessing the appropriateness of the 
policy of provision for excess and obsolete inventory by testing the accuracy of inventory ageing and 
analyzing movement of the ageing, analyzing the difference between the policy of the current year 
and the prior year, and analyzing the difference between the historical provisions and the actual write-
off amount; verifying that inventories were valued at the lower of cost or net realizable value by 
comparing the book value of inventories at the balance sheet date with recent sales price on selected 
samples; verifying the existence and completeness of inventories by tracing items on the final 
inventory listing to the physical inventory compilation; attending inventory counts to understand the 
status of the inventories and evaluate the appropriateness of the excess and obsolescence provision. 
We also considered the appropriateness of the disclosure of inventory in Note 6 to the consolidated 
financial statements. 

Goodwill impairment 

As of December 31, 2023, the carrying value of goodwill amounted to NTD1,039,915 thousand, 
which represented 12% of the total assets. The Company performed impairment testing on the cash-
generating units according to the International Financial Reporting Standards. The recoverable 
amount of the cash-generating units has been determined based on the value in use because their fair 
value cannot be reliably measured. The impairment testing indicated that the value in the use of 
certain cash-generating units was higher than their carrying amount. Because the carrying amounts 
of goodwill were significant to the Group, the determination of value in use was complex, as it 
involved significant management judgment when making assumptions about cash flow forecasts.We 
identified goodwill impairment as a key audit matter. Our audit procedures include, but are not limited 
to, evaluating the management’s assessment approaches and assumptions of value in use; evaluating 
the reasonableness of key assumptions used by management, such as growth rates, discount rates, 
gross margin, and evaluating the reasonableness of key components of discount rates, such as cost of 
equity, company-specific risk premium and market risk premium by comparing them to other 
companies of similar size with the cash-generating units; interviewing management and assessing the 
reasonableness of assumptions used in their financial forecast, such as cash flows, gross margin, 
growth rates, the overall market and economic conditions; comparing the actual financials to date 
with previously forecast financials and analyzing the Group’s historical data and performance to 
assess the reasonableness of the cash flow forecast. We also assessed the adequacy of the disclosures 
related to the result of impairment test and assumption’s sensitivity in Notes 4 and 6 to the 
consolidated financial statements. 
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Revenue Recognition 

The primary source of income of the Group is derived from sale of OEM-compatible imaging 
consumables and supplies, such as toner cartridges and drum gears for office equipment. Based on 
the varying contract terms in different distribution channels and sales models, it is significant to 
determine the timing when the control of goods is transferred and performance obligation is satisfied 
for the consolidated financial statements. We identified revenue recognition as a key audit matter. 
Our audit procedures include, but are not limited to, understanding and testing the effectiveness of 
internal controls related to revenue recognition in the sales cycle; selecting samples to perform the 
test of details of the sales transactions; reviewing the performance obligations of the orders or 
contracts and confirming the timing of performance obligation satisfaction against the related 
supporting documents to verify the correctness of the timing of revenue recognition; performing the 
cut-off testing for periods before and after the balance sheet date; and conducting analytical 
procedures for goods sold based on product types, regions, monthly sales revenue, and gross margin. 
We also considered the appropriateness of the disclosure of operating revenue in Note 6 to the 
consolidated financial statements. 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated 
Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial 
statements in accordance with the requirements of the Regulations Governing the Preparation of 
Financial Reports by Securities Issuers and International Financial Reporting Standards, International 
Accounting Standards, Interpretations developed by the International Financial Reporting 
Interpretations Committee or the former Standing Interpretations Committee as endorsed by Financial 
Supervisory Commission of the Republic of China and for such internal control as management 
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.  

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the ability 
to continue as a going concern, of the Group disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to 
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Those charged with governance, including the audit committee, are responsible for overseeing the 
financial reporting process of the Group. 
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Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements 
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ 
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a 
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the Standards on Auditing of the Republic of 
China will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud 
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be 
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated 
financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing of the Republic of China, we 
exercise professional judgment and professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:  

1. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

2. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the internal control of the Group.

3. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

4. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability to continue as a going concern of the
Group. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the accompanying notes, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

6. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we identify during our audit.  

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and 
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, 
related safeguards.  

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters 
that were of most significance in the audit of 2023 consolidated financial statements and are therefore 
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the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation 
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine 
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing 
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

Others 

We have audited and expressed an unqualified opinion on the parent company only financial 
statements of the Company as of and for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022.  

Huang, Yu Ting 

Tu, Chin Yuan 

Ernst & Young, Taiwan 

March 14, 2024 

Notice to Readers 

The accompanying consolidated financial statements are intended only to present the consolidated financial position, 

results of operations and cash flows in accordance with accounting principles and practices generally accepted in the 

Republic of China and not those of any other jurisdictions. The standards, procedures and practices to audit such 

consolidated financial statements are those generally accepted and applied in the Republic of China. 



Assets Amount % Amount %

Current assets

 Cash and cash equivalents 4, 6(1) $1,346,553 16   $679,675 9  

 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, current 4, 6(2) 219,600  3  -  -  

 Financial assets measured at amortized cost, current 4, 6(3), 8 56,598  1  299,069  3  

 Notes receivable, net 6(4) 198  -  431  -  

 Accounts receivable, net 6(4) 808,797  10   752,056  10   

 Other receivables 82,521  1  170,678  2  

 Current tax assets 4 3,412  -  30,906  -  

 Inventories 4, 6(5) 959,522  11   1,253,372  16   

 Prepayments 56,774  1  45,106  1  

 Other current assets 73  -  47  -  

 Total current assets 3,534,048  43   3,231,340  41   

Non-current assets

 Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income,
   non-current 4, 6(6) 99,000  1  99,016  1  

 Financial assets measured at amortized cost, non-current 4, 6(3) 8,845  -  -  -  

 Property, plant and equipment 4, 6(7), 8 1,942,798  24   1,747,251  23   

 Right-of-use assets 4, 6(19) 480,032  6  496,608  6  

 Investment property, net 4, 6(8) 381,722  5  391,774  5  

 Intangible assets 4, 6(9) 551,367  7  650,407  8  

 Goodwill 4, 6(10) 1,039,915  12   1,040,085  14   

 Deferred tax assets 4, 6(23) 84,651  1  102,583  1  

 Other non-current assets 99,338  1  63,061  1  

 Total non-current assets 4,687,668  57   4,590,785  59   

Total assets $8,221,716 100   $7,822,125 100   

English Translation of the Consolidated Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese

As of December 31,

(The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements)

(continued)

Notes

GENERAL PLASTIC INDUSTRIAL CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31, 2023 and 2022

(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

2023 2022
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Liabilities and Equity Amount % Amount %

Current liabilities

  Short-term loans 4, 6(11) $1,965,000 24   $1,465,000 19   

  Short-term notes and bills payable 4, 6(12) 100,898  1   150,779  2   

  Financial liabilities for hedging, current 4 1,019  -  1,534  -  

  Contract liabilities, current 6(18) 9,245  -  12,639  -  

  Notes payable 743  -  351  -  

  Accounts payable 449,965   6   492,420   6   

  Other payables 6(13) 466,070  6   498,796  7   

  Current tax liabilities 4 37,113  -  74,908  1   

  Provisions, current 4, 6(14) 12,020  -  16,578  -  

  Lease liabilities, current 4, 6(19) 85,075  1   66,698  1   

  Current portion of long-term loans 4, 6(15) 171,250  2   95,000  1   

  Other current liabilities 2,629  -  3,870  -  

  Total current liabilities 3,301,027  40   2,878,573  37   

Non-current liabilities

  Long-term loans 4, 6(15) -  -  171,250  2   

  Provisions, non-current 4, 6(14) 24,543  1   21,730  -  

  Deferred tax liabilities 4, 6(23) 248,350  3   259,413  3   

  Lease liabilities, non-current 4, 6(19) 433,345  5   447,062  6   

  Net defined benefit liabilities, non-current 4, 6(16) 56,064  1   63,921  1   

  Other non-current liabilities 6,870  -  6,733  -  

      Total non-current liabilities 769,172  10   970,109  12   

Total liabilities 4,070,199  50   3,848,682  49   

Equity attributable to the parent company

  Capital

    Common stock 6(17) 1,275,887  15   1,275,887  16   

  Additional paid-in capital 6(17) 1,213,799  15   1,213,799  16   

  Retained earnings 6(17)

  Legal reserve 582,539  7   514,355  6   

  Special reserve 114,265  1   212,520  3   

  Unappropriated earnings 885,403  11   697,509  9   

      Total retained earnings 1,582,207  19   1,424,384  18   

  Other components of equity

  Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations 94,375  1   60,844  1   
  Unrealized gains or losses from financial assets measured at fair value

  through other comprehensive income (13,992)   -  (13,994)   -  

  Gains or losses on hedging instruments (759) - 12,523  -  

      Total other components of equity 79,624  1   59,373  1   

Total equity 4,151,517  50   3,973,443  51   

Total liabilities and equity $8,221,716 100   $7,822,125 100   

As of December 31,

English Translation of the Consolidated Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese

2023 2022

Notes

(The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements)

GENERAL PLASTIC INDUSTRIAL CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS (Continued)

December 31, 2023 and 2022

(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)
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Notes 2023 % 2022 %
Operating revenues 4, 6(18), 7 $5,314,527 100   $5,703,207 100   
Operating costs 6(5)(20), 7 (3,103,844)   (58) (3,482,363)  (61)  
Gross profit from operations 2,210,683  42   2,220,844  39   
Operating expenses 6(20)
  Selling and marketing expenses (542,743)   (10) (555,058)  (10)  
  General and administrative expenses (988,742)   (19) (1,024,347)  (18)  
  Research and development expenses (143,783)   (3) (137,292)  (2)  
  Expected credit impairment losses 6(4) (9,167)  - (3,096)                         -  
    Total operating expenses (1,684,435)  (32) (1,719,793) (30)  
Operating Income 526,248  10   501,051  9   
Non-operating income and expenses 6(21)
  Interest income 59,674   1   14,839  -  
  Other income 28,575   1   21,560  -  
  Other gains and losses (15,555)   -  290,870   5   
  Finance costs (55,662)   (1)  (39,850)   -  
    Total non-operating income and expenses 17,032 1   287,419 5   
Income from continuing operatins before income tax 543,280  11   788,470  14   
Income tax expense 4, 6(23) (110,048)   (2) (109,861)  (2)  
Net income 433,232  9   678,609  12   

Other comprehensive income (loss)

Items that may not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss 6(22)(23)
  Remeasurements of defined benefit plans 6,607   -  4,042  -  
  Unrealized (losses) gains from investments in equity instruments
  measured at fair value through other comprehensive income 2   -  (1,383)   -  

  Income tax related to items that may not be reclassified subsequently (1,321)   -  (808)   -  
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss

  Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations 42,017   -  341,277   6   
  Gains or losses on hedging instruments (13,282)   -  (854)   -  
  Income tax related to items that may be reclassified subsequently (8,486)  -  (67,147)   (1)  

Total other comprehensive income (loss), net of income tax 25,537   -  275,127  5   
Total comprehensive income $458,769 9   $953,736 17   

Net income attributable to:

  Stockholders of the parent $433,232 $678,609

  Non-controlling interests -   -  
$433,232 $678,609

Comprehensive income attributable to:

  Stockholder of the parent $458,769 $953,736

  Non-controlling interests -   -  
$458,769 $953,736

Earnings per share (NTD) 4, 6(24)

  Earnings per share-basic $3.40 $5.32

  Earnings per share-diluted $3.37 $5.28

English Translation of the Consolidated Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese

For the Years Ended December 31,

GENERAL PLASTIC INDUSTRIAL CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the Years Ended December 31, 2023 and 2022

(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Except for Earnings per Share)

(The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements)
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Legal Reserve Special Reserve
Unappropriated

Earnings

Exchange
Differences on
Translation of

Foreign
Operations

  Unrealized Gains
or Losses from

Financial Assets
Measured at Fair

Value through Other
Comprehensive

Income 

Gains or Losses on
Hedging

Instruments

Balance as of January 1, 2022 $1,275,887 $1,239,317 $480,826 $114,265 $377,110 $(213,286) $(12,611) $13,377 $3,274,885

 Appropriations and distributions of earnings, 2021:

  Legal reserve 33,529 (33,529)

  Special reserve 98,255 (98,255)

  Cash dividends (229,660) (229,660)

  Cash dividends from additional paid-in capital (25,518) (25,518)

Net income in 2022 678,609 678,609

3,234   274,130  (1,383)   (854) 275,127 

Total comprehensive income (loss) 681,843   274,130  (1,383)   (854) 953,736 

Balance as of December 31, 2022 $1,275,887 $1,213,799 $514,355 $212,520 $697,509 $60,844 $(13,994) $12,523 $3,973,443

Balance as of January 1, 2023 $1,275,887 $1,213,799 $514,355 $212,520 $697,509 $60,844 $(13,994) $12,523 $3,973,443

 Appropriations and distributions of earnings, 2022:

  Legal reserve 68,184 (68,184)

  Special reserve (98,255) 98,255

  Cash dividends (280,695) (280,695)   
Net income in 2023 433,232   433,232   
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of income tax in 2023 5,286 33,531 2 (13,282) 25,537  
Total comprehensive income (loss) 438,518   33,531   2   (13,282)   458,769   

Balance as of December 31, 2023 $1,275,887 $1,213,799 $582,539 $114,265 $885,403 $94,375 $(13,992) $(759) $4,151,517

For the Years Ended December 31, 2023 and 2022

(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Additional
Paid-in Capital

Retained Earnings

English Translation of the Consolidated Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese

Other comprehensive income (loss), net of income tax in 2022

(The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements)

Total Equity

Other Components of Equity

Common Stock

GENERAL PLASTIC INDUSTRIAL CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
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2023 2022 2023 2022

Cash flows from operating activities: Cash flows from investing activities:

  Net income before tax $543,280 $788,470   Increase in financial assets measured at amortized cost - (226,078) 
  Adjustments to reconcile net income before tax to net cash provided by (used in)   Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at amortised cost 236,957   -  

  operating activities:   Acquisition of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (222,208)  -  
  Depreciation 182,963   250,231     Acquisition of property, plant and equipment (265,462)  (239,091)  

  Amortization 132,314   136,334     Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 570   1,444   

  Expected credit impairment losses 9,167  3,096     Increase in refundable deposits -  (18,598)  

  Net gain on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (775)  -    Decrease in refundable deposits 13,029   -  

  Financial costs 55,662   39,850     Acquisition of intangible assets (29,960)   (10,642)   

  Interest income (59,674)  (14,839)    Disposal of investment property -   407,366   

  Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment (183)  (391)    Increase in prepayments for equipment (27,174)   (31,298)   

  Property, plan and equipment transferred to expenses 815   646     Net cash used in investing activities (294,248)  (116,897)  

  Gain on disposal of investment property - (334,454) Cash flows from financing activities:

  Loss on disposal of intangible assets 479   289     Increase in short-term loans 6,569,000 8,235,000
  Loss for market price decline, obsolete and slow-moving inventories 10,645   9,331     Decrease in short-term loans (6,069,000)  (7,885,000)  

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:   Increase in short term notes and bills payable 1,342,220   1,483,045   

  (Increase) decrease in accounts receivable and notes receivable (66,356)  75,550     Decrease in short term notes and bills payable (1,392,101)  (1,651,980)  

  Decrease (increase) in other receivables 87,627   (8,977)    Repayments of long-term loans (95,000)  (238,084)  

  Decrease (increase) in inventories 288,026   (233,172)    Increase in guaranteed deposits received -   18   

  Increase in prepayments (11,777)  (5,720)    Decrease in guaranteed deposits received (58)  -  

  (Increase) decrease in other current assets (26)  2     Repayments of the leaseing principal (83,776)  (167,160)  

  Increase in other non-current assets (35,349)  (14) Cash dividends paid (280,695)  (255,178)  

  (Decrease) increase in derivative financial liability for hedging, current (523)  1,146     Net cash used in financing activities (9,410)  (479,339)  

  (Decrease) increase in contract liabilities (3,395)  4,197   Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 140,361   49,553   

  Increase (decrease) in notes payable 392   (272) Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 666,878   (88,028)  

  Decrease in accounts payable (43,422)  (101,047)  Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 679,675   767,703   

  Decrease in other payables (26,904)  (34,530)  Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $1,346,553 $679,675

  Decrease in provisions (1,765)  (17,472)  

  (Decrease) increase in other current liabilities (1,241)  422   

  Increase in other non-current liabilities 198   -      

  Decrease in defined benefit liabilities (1,250)  (7,047)  

    Cash generated from operations 1,058,928   551,629   

  Interest received 61,531   11,351   

  Interest paid (55,178)  (22,704)  

  Income tax paid (235,106)  (81,621)  

  Net cash generated from operating activities 830,175   458,655   

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the Years Ended December 31, 2023 and 2022

(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

English Translation of the Consolidated Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese

For the Years Ended December 31,For the Years Ended December 31,

(The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements)

GENERAL PLASTIC INDUSTRIAL CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
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Attachment 5 

GENERAL PLASTIC INDUSTRIAL CO., LTD. 

The Table of Earnings Distribution 

2023 
Unit: NTD 

Item Amount Remarks 

$446,883,216 
Unappropriated retained earnings at the beginning of 

period 
Other comprehensive income - remeasurements of 
   defined benefit plans for 2023 
Net income after tax for 2023 

Subtotal 
Reversal of special reserve 
Provision of legal reserve (10%) 

Distributable earnings  
Distributable items 

Dividends to shareholders - cash dividends 
Unappropriated retained earnings at end of period 

5,285,777 
433,232,304 
885,401,297 
114,265,265    

(318,971,850) NTD 2.5/share 
$636,842,904 

Note 1: The table of Earnings Distribution is based on the priority distribution of undistributed earnings 
in 2023. 

Chairman: Wang, Jui Hung General Manager: Wang, Jui Chi Chief Accounting Officer: Huang, Ching Hung 

955,814,754
(43,851,808)
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Attachment 6 

Comparison Table of Amendments to Articles of Incorporation, General Plastic Industrial Co., Ltd. 

Article Before amendment After amendment Explanation: 
Article 18 The Company shall have five (5) to 

nine (9) directors for a term of three 
(3) years, which shall adopt the
candidate nomination system. The
directors of the Company shall be
elected during the shareholders'
meeting from a list of candidates,
and shall be eligible for re-election;
the total number of shares held by all
directors shall not be less than a
certain percentage of the total
number of issued shares of the
Company, and the percentage shall
be determined by the competent
authorities.
During their term of office, the
directors shall take out liability
insurance for their liability under the
law for the execution of their scope
of responsibilities.
The number of independent directors
shall not be less than three and shall
not be less than one-fifth of the
number of directors. The
professional qualifications,
shareholdings, restrictions on part-
time employment, nomination and
election of independent directors and
other matters to be complied with
shall be governed by the Company
Act and the regulations of the
competent securities authorities.

The Company shall have seven to 
eleven directors for a term of three 
years, which shall adopt the 
candidate nomination system. The 
directors of the Company shall be 
elected during the shareholders' 
meeting from a list of candidates and 
shall be eligible for re-election; the 
total number of shares held by all 
directors shall not be less than a 
certain percentage of the total number 
of issued shares of the Company and 
the percentage shall be determined by 
the competent authorities. 
During their term of office, the 
directors shall take out liability 
insurance for their liability under the 
law for the execution of their scope 
of responsibilities. 
The number of independent directors 
shall not be less than three and shall 
not be less than one-fifth of the 
number of directors. The professional 
qualifications, shareholdings, 
restrictions on part-time employment, 
nomination and election of 
independent directors and other 
matters to be complied with shall be 
governed by the Company Act and 
the regulations of the competent 
securities authorities. 

Amended in 
accordance with Article 
4 of the Taiwan Stock 
Exchange Corporation 
Operation Directions 
for Compliance with 
the Establishment of 
Board of Directors by 
TWSE Listed 
Companies and the 
Board's Exercise of 
Powers 

Article 26 The Company may appoint a chief 
executive officer, a vice chief 
executive officer, and a general 
manager, who are appointed, 
dismissed and remunerated in 
accordance with Article 29 of the 
Company Act. 

The Company set managerial 
officers, who are appointed, 
dismissed, and remunerated in 
accordance with Article 29 of the 
Company Act. 

Amended in accordance 
with Article 29 of the 
Company Act. 

Article 32 These Articles of Incorporation were 
established on June 20, 1978. 
.....(omitted) 
The 28th amendment was made on 
June 17, 2020. 
The 29th amendment was made on 
October 23, 2020. 
The 30th amendment was made on 
July 22, 2021. 
The 31st amendment was made on 
June 16, 2022. 
The 32nd amendment was made on 
June 15, 2023. 

These Articles of Incorporation were 
established on June 20, 1978. 
.....(omitted) 
The 28th amendment was made on 
June 17, 2020. 
The 29th amendment was made on 
October 23, 2020. 
The 30th amendment was made on 
July 22, 2021. 
The 31st amendment was made on 
June 16, 2022. 
The 32nd amendment was made on 
June 15, 2023. 
The 33rd amendment was made on 
June 19, 2024 

Correction of typo and 
addition of the 
amendment date. 
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Appendix I 

General Plastic Industrial Co., Ltd. Articles of Incorporation (before amendment)

Chapter 1 General Provisions 

Article 1: The Company is organized in accordance with the provisions of the Company Act as a 
joint stock company and is hereby named as General Plastic Industrial Co., Ltd. 

Article 2: The Company shall engage in the following business scopes: 
1. CC01110 Computer and Peripheral Equipment Manufacturing
2. F113050 Wholesale of Computers and Clerical Machinery Equipment
3. F213030 Retail Sale of Computers and Clerical Machinery Equipment
4. CB01020 Affairs Machine Manufacturing
5. F401010 International Trade
6. CF01011 Medical Devices Manufacturing
7. F108031 Wholesale of Medical Devices
8. F208031 Retail Sale of Medical Apparatus
9. C301010 Spinning of Yarn
10. C302010 Weaving of Textiles
11. C303010 Manufacture of Non-woven Fabrics
12. CK01010 Footwear Manufacturing
13. C399990 Other Textile and Products Manufacturing
14. C805010 Manufacture of Plastic Sheets, Pipes and Tubes
15. C805030 Plastic Daily Necessities Manufacturing
16. C805050 Industrial Plastic Products Manufacturing
17. C805990 Other Plastic Products Manufacturing
18. CC01120 Data Storage Media Manufacturing and Duplicating
19. CC01060 Wired Communication Mechanical Equipment Manufacturing
20. CC01070 Wireless Communication Mechanical Equipment Manufacturing
21. CC01080 Electronics Components Manufacturing
22. C801030 Precision Chemical Material Manufacturing
23. C801100 Synthetic Resin and Plastic Manufacturing
24. C802080 Environmental Agents Manufacturing
25. C802160 Adhesive Tapes Manufacturing
26. C901010 Ceramic and Ceramic Products Manufacturing
27. CA02050 Valves Manufacturing
28. CA05010 Powder Metallurgy
29. CB01030 Pollution Controlling Equipment Manufacturing
30. CE01030 Optical Instruments Manufacturing
31. CH01040 Toys Manufacturing
32. CQ01010 Mold and Die Manufacturing
33. G801010 Warehousing
34. F106020 Wholesale of Daily Commodities
35. F206020 Retail Sale of Daily Commodities
36. ZZ99999 All business activities that are not prohibited or restricted by law, except

those that are subject to special approval.

Article 2-1: The Company may make external warranties and endorsements for the needs of its 
business and in the spirit of reciprocity. 

Article 3: The Company's head office is located in Taichung City, Taiwan. If necessary, the Board 
of Directors may, by resolution of the Board of Directors, establish branch offices in 
Taiwan and abroad. 
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Article 4: Deleted. 

Chapter 2 Shares 

Article 5: The Company's registered capital is set at NT$2 billion, divided into 200 million shares 
at a par value of NT$10 per share, and the Board of Directors is authorized to issue the 
shares in installments. 

Article 5-1: The Company reserves NT$100 million in its capital stock for the issuance of employee 
stock options, totaling 10 million shares at NT$10 per share, which may be issued in 
installments as resolved by the Board of Directors. 

Article 6: The shares issued by the Company may be issued in dematerialized form without the 
printing of physical share certificates, provided that the shares issued by the Company 
shall be registered with a centralized securities depository and shall be subject to the 
regulations of such institution. 

Article 7: The Company's stock affairs shall be handled in accordance with the “Regulations 
Governing the Administration of Shareholder Services of Public Companies” and related 
regulations promulgated by the competent authorities. 

Article 8: Deleted. 

Article 9: Deleted. 

Article 10: The Company may charge a handling fee for the replacement of stock certificates due to 
loss or other reasons. 

Article 11: The transfer of stock shall be suspended within 60 days prior to each annual general 
shareholders' meeting, within 30 days prior to each special shareholders' meeting, or 
within five days prior to the date on which the Company resolves to distribute dividends 
and bonuses or other benefits. 

Chapter 3 Shareholders' Meeting 

Article 12: There shall be two types of shareholders' meetings: regular meetings shall be held once 
a year within six months after the end of each fiscal year, and shall be convened by the 
Board of Directors in accordance with Article 172 of the Company Act; special 
shareholders’ meetings shall be convened when necessary in accordance with the law. 

Article 12-1: The Company's shareholders' meetings may be held by means of physical shareholders' 
meetings, held by means of visual communication network (including virtual-only 
shareholders' meetings and hybrid shareholders' meetings) or other methods 
promulgated by the central competent authority, and the relevant conditions, operating 
procedures and other matters to be complied with shall be in accordance with the 
provisions of the competent securities authority. 

Article 13: If a shareholder is unable to attend a shareholders' meeting for any reason, he or she may 
appoint a proxy to attend the meeting by presenting a proxy form issued by the Company 
specifying the scope of authority. In addition to the provisions of Article 177 of the 
Company Act, the method of proxy attendance by shareholders shall be in handled in 
accordance with the “Regulations Governing the Use of Proxies for Attendance at 
Shareholder Meetings of Public Companies” promulgated by the competent authorities. 

Article 14: The shareholders' meeting shall be convened by the board of directors unless otherwise 
provided in the Company Act. At the shareholders' meeting, the chair of the 
shareholders' meeting shall be selected in accordance with Article 182-1 of the Company 
Act. 

Article 15: The shareholders of the Company shall have one vote per share, but shall not have the 
right to vote under the circumstances set forth in Article 179 of the Company Act. 

Article 16: Resolutions at a shareholders' meeting shall, unless otherwise provided for in laws and 
regulations, be adopted by a majority vote of the shareholders present, who represent 
more than one-half of the total number of voting shares. 



33 

Article 17: Resolutions adopted at a shareholders' meeting shall be recorded in the minutes of the 
meeting, which shall be affixed with the signature or seal of the chairman of the meeting 
and shall be distributed to all shareholders of the company within twenty (20) days after 
the close of the meeting. 

Chapter 4 Directors and Audit Committee 

Article 18: The Company shall have five (5) to nine (9) directors for a term of three (3) years, which 
shall adopt the candidate nomination system. The directors of the Company shall be 
elected during the shareholders' meeting from a list of candidates, and shall be eligible 
for re-election; the total number of shares held by all directors shall not be less than a 
certain percentage of the total number of issued shares of the Company, and the 
percentage shall be determined by the competent authorities. 
During their term of office, the directors shall take out liability insurance for their 
liability under the law for the execution of their scope of responsibilities. 
The number of independent directors shall not be less than three and shall not be less 
than one-fifth of the number of directors. The professional qualifications, shareholdings, 
restrictions on part-time employment, nomination and election of independent directors 
and other matters to be complied with shall be governed by the Company Act and the 
regulations of the competent securities authorities. 

Article 19: In the event that the number of Directors reaches one-third or all the Independent 
Directors are dismissed, the Board of Directors shall convene an extraordinary meeting 
of shareholders within 60 days to hold a by-election; in the event that the number of 
directors is less than five due to the dismissal of directors or the number of independent 
directors does not reach the number stipulated in these Articles of Incorporation, a by-
election shall be held at the latest shareholders' meeting. The term of office shall be 
limited to the duration of the original term. 

Article 20: If a director's term of office expires without re-election, his or her executive duties shall 
be extended until the re-elected director assumes office, but the competent authority 
shall order the Company to hold a by-election within a period of time in accordance with 
its vested authority. If the director does not re-elect the director within the period of time, 
he or she shall be dismissed right upon the expiration of the term of office. 

Article 21: The Board of Directors shall comprise of board members. The Board of Directors shall 
elect a chairman of the board directors from among the directors by a majority vote at a 
meeting attended by over two-thirds of the directors, and may also elect in the same 
manner a vice chairman of the Board. The Chairman of the Board of Directors shall 
represent the Company externally and shall be responsible for all important affairs of 
the Company. 

Article 22: The Company's business policies and other important matters shall be carried out by 
resolution of the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors shall be convened by the 
Chairman of the Board of Directors, who shall be the Chairman of the Board of 
Directors, except for the first meeting of each Board of Directors, which shall be 
convened in accordance with Article 203 of the Company Act. In the event that the 
Chairman is unable to perform his or her duties, the Board of Directors shall act in 
accordance with Article 28 of the Company Act. 

Article 23: Unless otherwise provided in the Company Act, a meeting of the Board of Directors 
shall be held in the presence of a majority of the Directors and shall be conducted with 
the consent of a majority of the Directors present. If a Director is unable to attend a 
meeting for any reason, he or she may issue a proxy letter listing the scope of authority 
to convene the meeting and appoint other Directors to attend the Board of Directors' 
meeting on his or her behalf, provided that one person is appointed by one person. 
In case a meeting of the board of directors is conducted via video conferencing, directors 
taking part in such a video conference shall be deemed to have attended the meeting in 
person. 
A meeting of the Board of Directors shall be convened by stating the reason for the 
convening and giving seven (7) days' prior notice to each director. However, in the event 
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of an emergency, the Board of Directors may convene a meeting at any time. 
Notice of the convening of the Board of Directors' meeting may be given in writing, by 
e-mail or by facsimile.

Article 24: The minutes of the Board of Directors' meetings shall be prepared, signed or sealed by 
the chairman, and distributed to each director within 20 days after the meeting. The 
minutes shall contain the year, month, day, place, name of the chairman, method of 
resolution, and the main points of the proceedings and their results, and shall be kept 
permanently during the continuance of the Company. 

Article 25: The Company shall establish an Audit Committee in accordance with Article 14-4 of the 
Securities and Exchange Act. The Audit Committee shall consist of all independent 
directors and shall consist of not less than three members, one of whom shall be the 
convener. The members of the Audit Committee or the Audit Committee shall be 
responsible for carrying out the duties and responsibilities of supervisors as provided in 
the Company Act, the Securities and Exchange Act and other laws and regulations. 

Article 25-1: The remuneration of the Chairman, Vice Chairman and Directors shall be authorized to 
be determined by the Board of Directors in accordance with industry standards. 

Chapter 5 Managerial Officers and Staff 

Article 26: The Company may appoint a chief executive officer, a vice chief executive officer, and 
a general manager, who are appointed, dismissed and remunerated in accordance with 
Article 29 of the Company Act. 

Chapter 6 Final Account 

Article 27: The Board of Directors shall, at the end of each fiscal year, prepare the following forms 
and submit them to the shareholders' meeting for recognition: 
I. Business report; II. Financial Statements; III. Proposals for distribution of earnings or
indemnification of losses.

Article 28: If the Company makes a profit in a year, at least 10% of the profit shall be appropriated 
as remuneration to employees and not more than 5% as remuneration to directors. 
However, in case of the accumulated losses, certain profits shall first be reserved to cover 
them. 
Earnings for the year referred to in the preceding paragraph are defined as earnings 
before income taxes for the year before employee remuneration and directors' 
remuneration are distributed. 
Employees' remuneration may be in the form of stock or cash. 

Article 28-1: The Company's annual net income, after deducting income taxes, shall first make up for 
prior years' losses and then set aside 10% of the remaining balance as statutory reserve. 
The remaining balance, together with the accumulated undistributed earnings, is 
recorded as available-for-distribution earnings after the special reserve is set aside or 
reversed as required by law. The Board of Directors shall prepare a proposal for 
distribution and submit it to the shareholders' meeting for resolution to distribute 
dividends to shareholders. 
If the aforementioned distribution of earnings is in the form of cash dividends, the Board 
of Directors is authorized to approve the appropriation and report it at the shareholders' 
meeting. 
If the accumulated legal reserve has reached the Company's paid-in capital, the 
Company may not set aside the statutory reserve. 
The Company's dividend policy takes into account the Company's current and future 
expansion plans and capital requirements, and the Board of Directors prepares the 
proposal for the distribution of earnings each year in accordance with the law and 
submits it to the shareholders' meeting for approval. The total amount of dividends to 
shareholders shall be at least 10% of the distributable earnings, and the percentage of 
cash dividends to shareholders shall not be less than 10% of the total amount of 
dividends to shareholders, provided that if the distributable earnings are less than 
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NT$0.50 per share, the dividends may not be distributed. 

Article 28-2: The Company may distribute new shares or cash from statutory reserve or capital reserve 
in accordance with Article 241 of the Company Act. If the former is in cash, the Board 
of Directors is authorized to resolve and report to the shareholders at the shareholders' 
meeting. 

Chapter 7 Bylaws 

Article 29: The amount of the Company's intercorporate investments may exceed 40% of the paid-
in capital. 

Article 30: The Articles of Incorporation and by-laws of the Company shall be separately 
determined by the Board of Directors. 

Article 31: All matters not provided for in these Articles of Incorporation shall be governed by the 
Company Act and other laws and regulations. 

Article 32: These Articles of Incorporation were established on June 20, 1978. 
The 1st amendment was made on September 28, 1979. 
The 2nd amendment was made on April 5, 1981. 
The 3rd amendment was made on November 10, 1983. 
The 4th amendment was made on August 2, 1986. 
The 5th amendment was made on December 1, 1988. 
The 6th amendment was made on September 9, 1989. 
The 7th amendment was made on January 6, 1996. 
The 8th amendment was made on December 13, 1996. 
The 9th amendment was made on October 15, 1998. 
The 10th amendment was made on March 27, 2000. 
The 11th amendment was made on May 2, 2000. 
The 12th amendment was made on April 23, 2001. 
The 13th amendment was made on June 15, 2001. 
The 14th amendment was made on April 22, 2002. (the first time) 
The 15th amendment was made on April 22, 2002. (the second time) 
The 16th amendment was made on June 3, 2003. 
The 17th amendment was made on June 18, 2004. 
The 18th amendment was made on June 17, 2005 .  
The 19th amendment was made on June 16, 2006. 
The 20th amendment was made on November 24, 2006. 
The 21st amendment was made on June 28, 2007. 
The 22nd amendment was made on June 22, 2009. 
The 23rd amendment was made on June 23, 2010. 
The 24th amendment was made on May 31, 2011. 
The 25th amendment was made on May 30, 2012. 
The 26th amendment was made on June 2, 2016. 
The 27th amendment was made on November 22, 2017. 
The 28th amendment was made on June 17, 2020. 
The 29th amendment was made on October 23, 2020. 
The 30th amendment was made on July 22, 2021. 
The 31st amendment was made on June 16, 2022. 
The 32nd amendment was made on June 15, 2023. 

GENERAL PLASTIC INDUSTRIAL CO., LTD. 

Chairman: Wang, Jui Hung 
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Appendix II 

GENERAL PLASTIC INDUSTRIAL CO., LTD. 

Rules of Procedure for Shareholders' Meetings (before amendment) 

Article 1 Unless otherwise provided by law, the rules of the shareholders' meeting of the Company 
shall be governed by these Rules. 

Article 2 Unless otherwise provided by law or regulation, the Company's shareholders meetings 
shall be convened by the Board of Directors. 
Unless otherwise provided in the  Regulations Governing the Administration of 
Shareholder Services of Public Companies, the Company that will convene a shareholders' 
meeting with video conferencing shall expressly provide for such meetings in the Articles 
of Incorporation and obtain a resolution of its Board of Directors. The convening of 
shareholders' meetings with video conferencing shall obtain approval by a majority vote 
of the directors in attendance at a Board of Directors meeting attended by two-thirds or 
more of the directors. 
Changes to how the Company convenes its shareholders meeting shall be resolved by the 
Board of Directors, and shall be made no later than mailing of the shareholders meeting 
notice. 
Thirty days before the Company convenes a regular shareholders’ meeting or 15 days 
before a special shareholders’ meeting, the company shall prepare electronic files of the 
meeting announcement, proxy form, explanatory materials relating to proposals for 
ratification, matters for deliberation, election or dismissal of directors, and other matters 
on the shareholders’ meeting agenda, and upload them to the Market Observation Post 
System (MOPS). The Company shall prepare electronic versions of the shareholders 
meeting agenda and supplemental meeting materials and upload them to the MOPS 21 
days before the date of the regular shareholders meeting or before 15 days before the date 
of the special shareholders meeting. If, however, the Company has the paid-in capital of 
NT$10 billion or more as of the last day of the most current fiscal year, or total 
shareholding of foreign shareholders and PRC shareholders reaches 30% or more as 
recorded in the register of shareholders of the shareholders meeting held in the 
immediately preceding year, transmission of these electronic files shall be made by 30 days 
before the regular shareholders meeting. In addition, before 15 days before the date of the 
shareholders meeting, the Company shall also have prepared the shareholders meeting 
agenda and supplemental meeting materials and made them available for review by 
shareholders at any time. The meeting agenda and supplemental materials shall also be 
displayed at the Company and the professional shareholder services agent designated 
thereby. 
This Corporate shall make the meeting agenda and supplemental meeting materials in the 
preceding paragraph available to shareholders for review in the following manner on the 
date of the shareholders meeting: 
I. For physical shareholders meetings, to be distributed on-site at the meeting.
II. For hybrid shareholders’ meetings, to be distributed on-site at the meeting and shared

on the virtual meeting platform.
III. For virtual-only shareholders’ meetings, electronic files shall be shared on the virtual

meeting platform.
The reasons for convening a shareholders meeting shall be specified in the meeting notice 
and public announcement. With the consent of the addressee, the meeting notice may be 
given in electronic form. 
Election or dismissal of directors, amendments to the articles of incorporation, reduction 
of capital, application for the approval of ceasing its status as a public company, approval 
of competing with the company by directors, surplus profit distributed in the form of new 
shares, reserve distributed in the form of new shares, the dissolution, merger, or demerger 
of the corporation, or any matter under Article 185, paragraph 1 of the Company Act, 
Articles 26-1 and 43-6 of the Securities and Exchange Act, Articles 56-1 and 60-2 of the 
Regulations Governing the Offering and Issuance of Securities by Securities Issuers shall 
be set out and the essential contents explained in the notice of the reasons for convening 
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the shareholders meeting. None of the above matters may be raised by an extraordinary 
motion. 
Where re-election of all directors as well as their inauguration date is stated in the notice 
of the reasons for convening the shareholders meeting, after the completion of the re-
election in said meeting such inauguration date may not be altered by any extraordinary 
motion or otherwise in the same meeting. 
A shareholder holding one percent or more of the total number of issued shares may submit 
to the Company a proposal for discussion at a regular shareholders meeting. The number 
of items so proposed is limited to one only, and no proposal containing more than one item 
will be included in the meeting agenda. When the circumstances of any subparagraph of 
Article 172-1, paragraph 4 of the Company Act apply to a proposal put forward by a 
shareholder, the Board of Directors may exclude it from the agenda. 
A shareholder may propose a recommendation for urging the corporation to promote public 
interests or fulfill its social responsibilities, provided procedurally the number of items so 
proposed is limited only to one in accordance with Article 172-1 of the Company Act, and 
no proposal containing more than one item will be included in the meeting agenda. 
Prior to the date on which share transfer registration is suspended before the convention of 
a regular shareholders’ meeting, the company shall give a public notice announcing 
acceptance of proposal in writing or by way of electronic transmission, the place and the 
period for shareholders to submit proposals to be discussed at the meeting; and the period 
for accepting such proposals shall not be less than ten (10) days. 
A proposal submitted by shareholders must not exceed 300 Chinese characters. Any 
proposal containing more than 300 Chinese characters will not be included in the agenda. 
A shareholder who has submitted a proposal must attend the regular shareholders' meeting 
in person or by proxy and participate in the discussion of his or her proposal. 
The company shall, prior to preparing and delivering the shareholders’ meeting notice, 
inform, by a notice, all the proposal submitting shareholders of the proposal screening 
results, and shall list in the shareholders’ meeting notice the proposals conforming to the 
requirements set out in this Article. With regard to the proposals submitted by shareholders 
but not included in the agenda of the meeting, the cause of exclusion of such proposals and 
explanation shall be made by the Board of Directors at the shareholders’ meeting to be 
convened. 

Article 3 For each shareholders meeting, a shareholder may appoint a proxy to attend the meeting 
by providing the proxy form issued by the Company and stating the scope of the proxy's 
authorization. 
A shareholder may issue only one proxy form and appoint only one proxy for any given 
shareholders meeting, and shall deliver the proxy form to the Company before five days 
before the date of the shareholders meeting. When duplicate proxy forms are delivered, 
the one received earliest shall prevail unless a declaration is made to cancel the previous 
proxy appointment. 
If, after the Company has received a proxy form, a shareholder sending the proxy form 
decides to attend the shareholders' meeting in person or intends to exercise his or her voting 
rights in writing or electronically, he or she shall issue a written notice to revoke the 
authorization to the Company two days before the shareholders' meeting. If the revocation 
is not provided within the specified time limit, exercise of the voting rights by the proxy 
attending the meeting shall prevail. 
If, after a proxy form is delivered to the Company, a shareholder wishes to attend the 
shareholders meeting online, a written notice of proxy cancellation shall be submitted to 
the Company two business days before the meeting date. If the cancellation notice is 
submitted after that time, votes cast at the meeting by the proxy shall prevail. 

Article 4 The venue for a shareholders meeting shall be the premises of this Corporation, or a place 
easily accessible to shareholders and suitable for a shareholders meeting.  The meeting 
may begin no earlier than 9 a.m. and no later than 3 p.m. Full consideration shall be given 
to the opinions of the independent directors with respect to the place and time of the 
meeting. 
The restrictions on the place of the meeting shall not apply when the Company convenes 
a virtual-only shareholders meeting. 
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Article 5 The Company shall specify in its shareholders meeting notices the time during which 
attendance registrations for shareholders, solicitors and proxies (collectively 
“shareholders”) will be accepted, the place to register for attendance, and other matters for 
attention. 
The time during which shareholder attendance registrations will be accepted, as stated in 
the preceding paragraph, shall be at least 30 minutes prior to the time the meeting 
commences. The place at which attendance registrations are accepted shall be clearly 
marked and a sufficient number of suitable personnel assigned to handle the registrations. 
For virtual shareholders meetings, shareholders may begin to register on the virtual 
meeting platform 30 minutes before the meeting starts. Shareholders completing 
registration will be deemed as attend the shareholders meeting in person. 
Shareholders shall attend shareholders meetings based on attendance cards, sign-in cards, 
or other certificates of attendance. The Company may not arbitrarily add requirements for 
other documents beyond those showing eligibility to attend presented by shareholders. 
Solicitors soliciting proxy forms shall also bring identification documents for verification. 
The Company shall furnish the attending shareholders with an attendance book to sign, or 
attending shareholders may hand in a sign-in card in lieu of signing in. 
The Company shall furnish attending shareholders with the meeting agenda, annual report, 
attendance card, speaker's slips, voting slips, and other meeting materials. Where there is 
an election of directors, pre-printed ballots shall also be furnished. 
When the government or a juristic person is a shareholder, it may be represented by more 
than one representative at a shareholders meeting. When a juristic person is appointed to 
attend as proxy, it may designate only one person to represent it in the meeting. 
In the event of a virtual shareholders meeting, shareholders wishing to attend the meeting 
online shall register with the Company two days before the meeting date. 
In the event of a virtual shareholders meeting, the Company shall upload the meeting 
agenda book, annual report and other meeting materials to the virtual meeting platform at 
least 30 minutes before the meeting starts, and keep this information disclosed until the 
end of the meeting. 

Article 5-1 To convene a virtual shareholders meeting, the Company shall include the follow 
particulars in the shareholders meeting notice: 
I. How shareholders attend the virtual meeting and exercise their rights.
II. Actions to be taken if the virtual meeting platform or participation in the virtual

meeting is obstructed due to natural disasters, accidents or other force majeure events,
at least covering the following particulars:
(I) To what time the meeting is postponed or from what time the meeting will

resume if the above obstruction continues and cannot be removed and the date
to which the meeting is postponed or on which the meeting will resume.

(II) Shareholders not having registered to attend the affected virtual shareholders
meeting shall not attend the postponed or resumed session.

(III) In case of a hybrid shareholders meeting, when the virtual meeting cannot be
continued, if the total number of shares represented at the meeting, after
deducting those represented by shareholders attending the virtual shareholders’ 
meeting online, meets the minimum legal requirement for a shareholders’ 
meeting, then the shareholders’ meeting shall continue. The shares represented
by shareholders attending the virtual meeting online shall be counted towards
the total number of shares represented by shareholders present at the meeting,
and the shareholders attending the virtual meeting online shall be deemed
abstaining from voting on all proposals on meeting agenda of that shareholders’ 
meeting.

(IV) Actions to be taken if the outcome of all proposals have been announced and
extraordinary motion has not been carried out.

III. To convene a virtual-only shareholders’ meeting, appropriate alternative measures
available to shareholders with difficulties in attending a virtual shareholders’ meeting
online shall be specified. Unless otherwise provided in Paragraph 6, Article 44-9 of
the Regulations Governing the Administration of Shareholder Services of Public
Companies, the Company shall at least provide shareholders connection device and
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necessary assistance for the shareholders' meeting with video conferencing and shall 
specify the application period and other matters for shareholders. 

Article 6 If a shareholders meeting is convened by the Board of Directors, the meeting shall be 
chaired by the chairperson of the board. When the chairperson of the board is on leave or 
for any reason unable to exercise the powers of the chairperson, the vice chairperson shall 
act in place of the chairperson; if there is no vice chairperson or the vice chairperson also 
is on leave or for any reason unable to exercise the powers of the vice chairperson, the 
chairperson shall appoint one of the managing directors to act as chair, or, if there are no 
managing directors, one of the directors shall be appointed to act as chair. Where the 
chairperson does not make such a designation, the managing directors or the directors shall 
select from among themselves one person to serve as chair. 
When a managing director or a director serves as chair, as referred to in the preceding 
paragraph, the managing director or director shall be one who has held that position for six 
months or more and who understands the financial and business conditions of the company. 
The same shall be true for a representative of a juristic person director that serves as chair. 
For a shareholders meeting called by the Board of Directors, it is advisable that the board 
chairperson chair the meeting, that a majority of the directors (including at least one 
independent director) and convener of the audit committee, or at least one supervisor, 
attend in person, and that at least one member of other functional committees attend as 
representative. Attendance details should be recorded in the shareholders meeting minutes. 
If a shareholders meeting is convened by a party with power to convene but other than the 
Board of Directors, the convening party shall chair the meeting. When there are two or 
more such convening parties, they shall mutually select a chair from among themselves. 
The Company may appoint its attorneys, certified public accountants, or related persons 
retained by it to attend a shareholders meeting in a non-voting capacity. 

Article 7 The Company, beginning from the time it accepts shareholder attendance registrations, 
shall make an uninterrupted audio and video recording of the registration procedure, the 
proceedings of the shareholders meeting, and the voting and vote counting procedures. 
The recorded materials of the preceding paragraph shall be retained for at least one year. 
If, however, a shareholder files a lawsuit pursuant to Article 189 of the Company Act, the 
ballots shall be retained until the conclusion of the litigation. 
Where a shareholders meeting is held online, the Company shall keep records of 
shareholder registration, sign-in, check-in, questions raised, votes cast and results of votes 
counted by the Company, and continuously audio and video record, without interruption, 
the proceedings of the virtual meeting from beginning to end. 
The information and audio and video recording in the preceding paragraph shall be 
properly kept by the Company during the entirety of its existence, and copies of the audio 
and video recording shall be provided to and kept by the party appointed to handle matters 
of the virtual meeting. 
In case of a virtual shareholders meeting, the Company is advised to audio and video record 
the back-end operation interface of the virtual meeting platform. 

Article 8 Attendance at shareholders meetings shall be calculated based on numbers of shares. The 
number of shares in attendance shall be calculated according to the shares indicated by the 
attendance book and sign-in cards handed in, and the shares checked in on the virtual 
meeting platform, plus the number of shares whose voting rights are exercised by 
correspondence or electronically. 
The chair shall call the meeting to order at the appointed meeting time and disclose 
information concerning the number of nonvoting shares and number of shares represented 
by shareholders attending the meeting. However, when the attending shareholders do not 
represent a majority of the total number of issued shares, the chair may announce a 
postponement, provided that no more than two such postponements, for a combined total 
of no more than one hour, may be made. and the attending shareholders still represent less 
than one third of the total number of issued shares, the chair shall declare the meeting 
adjourned. In the event of a virtual shareholders’ meeting, the Company shall also declare 
the meeting adjourned at the virtual meeting platform. 
 If the quorum is not met after two postponements as referred to in the preceding 
paragraph, but the attending shareholders represent one third or more of the total number 
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of issued shares, a tentative resolution may be adopted pursuant to Article 175, paragraph 
1 of the Company Act; all shareholders shall be notified of the tentative resolution and 
another shareholders’ meeting shall be convened within one month. In the event of a virtual 
shareholders’ meeting, shareholders intending to attend the meeting online shall re-register 
to the Company in accordance with Article 5. 
When, prior to conclusion of the meeting, the attending shareholders represent a majority 
of the total number of issued shares, the chair may resubmit the tentative resolution for a 
vote by the shareholders meeting pursuant to Article 174 of the Company Act. 

Article 9 If a shareholders meeting is convened by the Board of Directors, the meeting agenda shall 
be set by the Board of Directors. Votes shall be cast on each separate proposal in the agenda 
(including extraordinary motions and amendments to the original proposals set out in the 
agenda). The meeting shall proceed in the order set by the agenda, which may not be 
changed without a resolution of the shareholders meeting. 
The provisions of the preceding paragraph apply mutatis mutandis to a shareholders 
meeting convened by a party with the power to convene that is not the Board of Directors. 
The chair may not declare the meeting adjourned prior to completion of deliberations on 
the meeting agenda of the preceding two paragraphs (including extraordinary motions), 
except by a resolution of the shareholders meeting. If the chair declares the meeting 
adjourned in violation of the rules of procedure, the other members of the Board of 
Directors shall promptly assist the attending shareholders in electing a new chair in 
accordance with statutory procedures, by agreement of a majority of the votes represented 
by the attending shareholders and then continue the meeting. 
The chair shall allow ample opportunity during the meeting for explanation and discussion 
of proposals and of amendments or extraordinary motions put forward by the shareholders; 
when the chair is of the opinion that a proposal has been discussed sufficiently to put it to 
a vote, the chair may announce the discussion closed, call for a vote, and schedule 
sufficient time for voting. 

Article 10 Before speaking, an attending shareholder must specify on a speaker's slip the subject of 
the speech, his/her shareholder account number (or attendance card number), and account 
name. The order in which shareholders speak will be set by the chair. 
A shareholder in attendance who has submitted a speaker's slip but does not actually speak 
shall be deemed to have not spoken. When the content of the speech does not correspond 
to the subject given on the speaker's slip, the spoken content shall prevail. 
Except with the consent of the chair, a shareholder may not speak more than twice on the 
same proposal, and a single speech may not exceed 5 minutes. If the shareholder's speech 
violates the rules or exceeds the scope of the agenda item, the chair may terminate the 
speech. 
When an attending shareholder is speaking, other shareholders may not speak or interrupt 
unless they have sought and obtained the consent of the chair and the shareholder that has 
the floor; the chair shall stop any violation. 
When a juristic person shareholder appoints two or more representatives to attend a 
shareholders meeting, only one of the representatives so appointed may speak on the same 
proposal. After an attending shareholder has spoken, the chair may respond in person or 
direct relevant personnel to respond. 
Where a virtual shareholders meeting is convened, shareholders attending the virtual 
meeting online may raise questions in writing at the virtual meeting platform from the 
chair declaring the meeting open until the chair declaring the meeting adjourned. No more 
than two questions for the same proposal may be raised. Each question shall contain no 
more than 200 words. The regulations in paragraphs 1 to 5 do not apply. 
As long as questions so raised in accordance with the preceding paragraph are not in 
violation of the regulations or beyond the scope of a proposal, it is advisable the questions 
be disclosed to the public at the virtual meeting platform. 

Article 11 Voting at a shareholders meeting shall be calculated based the number of shares. 
The shares held by shareholders having no voting right shall not be counted in the total 
number of issued shares while adopting a resolution at a meeting of shareholders. 
When a shareholder is an interested party in relation to an agenda item, and there is the 
likelihood that such a relationship would prejudice the interests of the Company, that 
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shareholder may not vote on that item, and may not exercise voting rights as proxy for any 
other shareholder. 
The number of shares for which voting rights may not be exercised under the preceding 
paragraph shall not be calculated as part of the voting rights represented by attending 
shareholders. 
Except for trust enterprises or stock agencies approved by the competent authority, when 
a person who acts as the proxy for two or more shareholders, the number of voting power 
represented by him/her shall not exceed 3% of the total number of voting shares of the 
company, otherwise, the portion of excessive voting power shall not be counted. 

Article 12 A shareholder shall be entitled to one vote for each share held, except when the shares are 
restricted shares or are deemed non-voting shares under Article 179, paragraph 2 of the 
Company Act. 
When the Company holds a shareholder meeting, it shall adopt exercise of voting rights 
by electronic means and may adopt exercise of voting rights by correspondence. When 
voting rights are exercised by correspondence or electronic means, the method of exercise 
shall be specified in the shareholders meeting notice. A shareholder exercising voting 
rights by correspondence or electronic means will be deemed to have attended the meeting 
in person, but to have waived his/her rights with respect to the extraordinary motions and 
amendments to original proposals of that meeting; it is therefore advisable that the 
Company avoid the submission of extraordinary motions and amendments to original 
proposals. 
A shareholder intending to exercise voting rights by correspondence or electronic means 
under the preceding paragraph shall deliver a written declaration of intent to the Company 
before two days before the date of the shareholders meeting. When duplicate declarations 
of intent are delivered, the one received earliest shall prevail, except for a declaration to 
revoke a prior expression of intent. 
After a shareholder has exercised voting rights by correspondence or electronic means, in 
the event the shareholder intends to attend the shareholders meeting in person or online, a 
written declaration of intent to retract the voting rights already exercised under the 
preceding paragraph shall be made known to the Company, by the same means by which 
the voting rights were exercised, before two business days before the date of the 
shareholders meeting. If the notice of retraction is submitted after that time, the voting 
rights already exercised by correspondence or electronic means shall prevail. When a 
shareholder has exercised voting rights both by correspondence or electronic means and 
by appointing a proxy to attend a shareholders meeting, the voting rights exercised by the 
proxy in the meeting shall prevail. 
Except as otherwise provided in the Company Act and in the Company's articles of 
incorporation, the passage of a proposal shall require an affirmative vote of a majority of 
the voting rights represented by the attending shareholders. At the time of a vote, for each 
proposal, the chair or a person designated by the chair shall first announce the total number 
of voting rights represented by the attending shareholders, followed by a poll of the 
shareholders. After the conclusion of the meeting, on the same day it is held, the results 
for each proposal, based on the numbers of votes for and against and the number of 
abstentions, shall be entered into the MOPS. 
When there is an amendment or an alternative to a proposal, the chair shall present the 
amended or alternative proposal together with the original proposal and decide the order 
in which they will be put to a vote. When any one among them is passed, the other 
proposals will then be deemed rejected, and no further voting shall be required. 
Vote monitoring and counting personnel for the voting on a proposal shall be appointed by 
the chair, provided that all monitoring personnel shall be shareholders of the Company. 
Vote counting for shareholders meeting proposals or elections shall be conducted in public 
at the place of the shareholders meeting. Immediately after vote counting has been 
completed, the results of the voting, including the statistical tallies of the numbers of votes, 
shall be announced on-site at the meeting, and a record made of the vote. 
When the Company convenes a virtual shareholders meeting, after the chair declares the 
meeting open, shareholders attending the meeting online shall cast votes on proposals and 
elections on the virtual meeting platform before the chair announces the voting session 
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ends or will be deemed abstained from voting. 
In the event of a virtual shareholders meeting, votes shall be counted at once after the chair 
announces the voting session ends, and results of votes and elections shall be announced 
immediately. 
When the Company convenes a hybrid shareholders’ meeting, if shareholders who have 
registered to attend the meeting online in accordance with Article 5 decide to attend the 
physical shareholders’ meeting in person, they shall revoke their registration two days 
before the shareholders’ meeting  
in the same manner as they registered. If their registration is not revoked within the time 
limit, they may only attend the shareholders’ meeting online. 
When shareholders exercise voting rights by correspondence or electronic means, unless 
they have withdrawn the declaration of intent and attended the shareholders meeting 
online, except for extraordinary motions, they will not exercise voting rights on the original 
proposals or make any amendments to the original proposals  
or exercise voting rights on amendments to the original proposal. 

Article 13 The election of directors at a shareholders meeting shall be held in accordance with the 
applicable election and appointment rules adopted by the Company, and the voting results 
shall be announced on-site immediately, including the names of those elected as directors 
and the numbers of votes with which they were elected, and the names of directors not 
elected and number of votes they received. 
The ballots for the election referred to in the preceding paragraph shall be sealed with the 
signatures of the monitoring personnel and kept in proper custody for at least one year. If, 
however, a shareholder files a lawsuit pursuant to Article 189 of the Company Act, the 
ballots shall be retained until the conclusion  
of the litigation. 

Article 14 Resolutions adopted at a shareholders' meeting shall be recorded in the minutes of the 
meeting, which shall be affixed with the signature or seal of the chairman of the meeting 
and shall be distributed to all shareholders of the company within twenty (20) days after 
the close of the meeting. The meeting minutes may be produced and distributed in 
electronic form. 
The Company may distribute the meeting minutes of the preceding paragraph by means of 
a public announcement made through the MOPS. 
The meeting minutes shall accurately record the year, month, day, and place of the meeting, 
the chair's full name, the methods by which resolutions were adopted, and a summary of 
the deliberations and their voting results (including the number of voting rights), and 
disclose the number of voting rights won by each candidate in the event of an election of 
directors. The minutes shall be retained for the duration of the existence of the Company. 
The minutes shall be retained for the duration of the existence of the Company. 
Where a virtual shareholders’ meeting is convened, in addition to the particulars to be 
included in the meeting minutes as described in the preceding paragraph, the start time and 
end time of the shareholders’ meeting, how the meeting is convened, the chair's and 
secretary's name, and actions to be taken in the event of disruption to the virtual meeting 
platform or participation in the meeting online due to natural disasters,  
accidents or other force majeure events and how issues are dealt with shall also be included 
in the minutes. 
When convening a virtual-only shareholder meeting, other than compliance with the 
requirements in the preceding paragraph, the Company shall specify in the meeting 
minutes alternative measures available to shareholders with difficulties in attending a 
virtual-only shareholders meeting online 

Article 15 On the day of a shareholders meeting, the Company shall compile in the prescribed format 
a statistical statement of the number of shares obtained by solicitors through solicitation, 
the number of shares represented by proxies and the number of shares represented by 
shareholders attending the meeting by correspondence or electronic means, and shall make 
an express disclosure of the same at the place of the shareholders meeting. In the event a 
virtual shareholders meeting, the Company shall upload the above meeting materials to the 
virtual meeting platform at least 30 minutes before the meeting starts, and keep this 
information disclosed until the end of the meeting. 
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During the Company's virtual shareholders meeting, when the meeting is called to order, 
the total number of shares represented at the meeting shall be disclosed on the virtual 
meeting platform. The same shall apply whenever the total number of shares represented 
at the meeting and a new tally of votes is released during the meeting. 
If matters put to a resolution at a shareholders meeting constitute material information 
under applicable laws or regulations or under Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation 
regulations, the Company shall upload the content of such resolution to the MOPS within 
the prescribed time period 

Article 16 Staff handling administrative affairs of a shareholders meeting shall wear identification 
cards or arm bands. 
The chair may direct the proctors or security personnel to help maintain order at the 
meeting place. When proctors or security personnel help maintain order at the meeting 
place, they shall wear an identification card or armband bearing the word “Proctor.” 
At the place of a shareholders meeting, if a shareholder attempts to speak through any 
device other than the public address equipment set up by the Company, the chair may 
prevent the shareholder from so doing. 
When a shareholder violates the rules of procedure and defies the chair's correction, 
obstructing the proceedings and refusing to heed calls to stop, the chair may direct the 
proctors or security personnel to escort the shareholder from the meeting. 

Article 17 When a meeting is in progress, the chair may announce a break based on time 
considerations. If a force majeure event occurs, the chair may rule the meeting temporarily 
suspended and announce a time when, in view of the circumstances, the meeting will be 
resumed. 
If the meeting venue is no longer available for continued use and not all of the items 
(including extraordinary motions) on the meeting agenda have been addressed, the 
shareholders meeting may adopt a resolution to resume the meeting at another venue. 
A resolution may be adopted at a shareholders meeting to defer or resume the meeting 
within five days in accordance with Article 182 of the Company Act. 

Article 18 In the event of a virtual shareholders’ meeting, the Company shall disclose real-time results 
of votes and election immediately after the end of the voting session on the virtual meeting 
platform according to the regulations, and this disclosure shall continue  
at least 15 minutes after the chair has announced the meeting adjourned. 

Article 19 When the Company convenes a virtual-only shareholders meeting, both the chair and 
secretary shall be in the same location, and the chair shall declare the address of their 
location when the meeting is called to order. 

Article 20 In the event of a virtual shareholders meeting, the Company may offer a simple connection 
test to shareholders prior to the meeting, and provide relevant real-time services before and 
during the meeting to help resolve communication technical issues. 
In the event of a virtual shareholders’ meeting, when declaring the meeting open, the chair 
shall also declare, unless under a circumstance where a meeting is not required to be 
postponed to or resumed at another time under Article 44-20, paragraph 4 of the 
Regulations Governing the Administration of Shareholder Services of Public Companies, 
if the virtual meeting platform or participation in the virtual meeting is obstructed due to 
natural disasters, accidents or other force majeure events before the chair has announced 
the meeting adjourned, and the obstruction continues for more than 30 minutes, the 
meeting shall be postponed to or resumed on another date within five days,  
in which case Article 182 of the Company Act shall not apply. 
For a meeting to be postponed or resumed as described in the preceding paragraph, 
shareholders who have not registered to participate in the affected shareholders meeting 
online shall not attend the postponed or resumed session. 
For a meeting to be postponed or resumed under the second paragraph, the number of 
shares represented by and voting rights and election rights exercised by the shareholders 
who have registered to participate in the affected shareholders’ meeting and have 
successfully signed in the meeting, but do not attend the postpone or resumed session,  
at the affected shareholders meeting, shall be counted towards the total number of shares, 
number of voting rights and number of election rights represented at the postponed or 



44 

resumed session. 
During a postponed or resumed session of a shareholders meeting held under the second 
paragraph, no further discussion or resolution is required for proposals for which votes 
have been cast and counted and results have been announced, or list of elected directors. 
When the Company convenes a hybrid shareholders meeting, and the virtual meeting 
cannot continue as described in second paragraph, if the total number of shares represented 
at the meeting, after deducting those represented by shareholders attending the virtual 
shareholders meeting online, still meets the minimum legal requirement for a shareholder 
meeting, then the shareholders meeting shall continue, and not postponement or 
resumption thereof under the second paragraph is required. 
Under the circumstances where a meeting should continue as in the preceding paragraph, 
the shares represented by shareholders attending the virtual meeting online shall be 
counted towards the total number of shares represented by shareholders present at the 
meeting, provided these shareholders shall be deemed abstaining from voting on all 
proposals on meeting agenda of that shareholders meeting. 
When postponing or resuming a meeting according to the second paragraph, the Company 
shall handle the preparatory work based on the date of the original shareholders meeting 
in accordance with the requirements listed under Article 44-20, paragraph 7 of the 
Regulations Governing the Administration of Shareholder Services of Public Companies. 
For dates or period set forth under Article 12, second half, and Article 13, paragraph 3 of 
Regulations Governing the Use of Proxies for Attendance at Shareholder Meetings of 
Public Companies, and Article 44-5, paragraph 2, Article 44-15, and Article 44-17, 
paragraph 1 of the Regulations Governing the Administration of Shareholder Services of 
Public Companies, the Company shall handle the matter based on the date of the 
shareholders meeting that is postponed or resumed under the second paragraph. 

Article 21 When convening a virtual-only shareholders meeting, the Company shall provide 
appropriate alternative measures available to shareholders with difficulties in attending a 
virtual shareholders meeting online. Unless otherwise provided in Paragraph 6, Article 44-
9 of the Regulations Governing the Administration of Shareholder Services of Public 
Companies, the Company shall at least provide shareholders connection device and 
necessary assistance for the shareholders' meeting with video conferencing and shall 
specify the application period and other matters for shareholders. 

Article 22 These Rules shall take effect after having been submitted to and approved by a 
shareholders meeting. Subsequent amendments thereto shall be effected in the same 
manner. 
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Appendix III 

Directors’ Shareholding of General Plastic Industrial Co., Ltd. 

I. The Company's paid-in capital was NT$1,275,887,400 and the number of issued shares was

127,588,740. 

II. In accordance with Article 26 of the Securities and Exchange Act, the minimum number of

shareholding of all directors shall be 8,000,000 shares.

III. The shareholdings of individual directors and all directors as recorded in the share register as of the

book closure period of the shareholders' meeting are as follows:

Title Name of first term 
to 

current 
term 

Shareholding while 
elected 

Shareholding as recorded in 
the shareholder roster as of 

April 21, 2024 

Shares Ratio % Shares Ratio % 

Chairman 
Kuan Fu Co., Ltd. 

Representative: 
Wang, Jui Hung

2022/06/16 3 years 27,136,380 21.27 27,136,380 21.27 

Directors 

Kuan Fu Co., Ltd. 
Representative: 

Wang Lai, Ming Yue 
2022/06/16 3 years 27,136,380 21.27 27,136,380 21.27 

Directors Wang, Jui Chi  2022/06/16 3 years 5,694,000 4.46 5,694,000 4.46 

Directors Wang, Sen Yung 2022/06/16 3 years 15,711 0.01 15,711 0.01 

Directors Wang, Jui Kung  2022/06/16 3 years 1,931,135 1.51 1,931,135 1.51 

Directors Wang, Mao Yao 2022/06/16 3 years 767,216 0.60 767,216 0.60 

Independent 
director

Huang, Jui Feng 2022/06/16 3 years 81,920 0.06 81,920 0.06 

Independent 
director

Wu, Chia Yin 2022/06/16 3 years 90,350 0.07 90,350 0.07 

Independent 
director

Wang, Teng Chi  2022/06/16 3 years 70,000 0.05 75,000 0.06 

Total number of shares held by all directors 35,786,712 28.03 35,791,712 28.04 

IV. Name, type and number of shares held and reasons for termination of directorship as of April 21, 2024:

None
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Appendix IV 

Other Matters 

I. Remuneration of employees and directors.

For the remuneration of the Company’s employees and directors in 2023, the Board of Directors

resolved on March 14, 2024 that the remuneration of employees and directors shall be distributed in

cash as follows:
Unit: NT$1 

Distributable 
items 

Amount to be 
distributed as 

resolved by the 
Board of Directors 

(A) 

Estimated amount of 
recognized expenses 

for the year (B) 

Difference 
(A-B) 

Reason for 
difference and 

treatment 

Remuneration  of 
      Employees 28,157,000 28,157,000 0 None 

Remuneration of 
directors 13,500,000 13,500,000 0 None 

II. Description of the acceptance of shareholders' proposals at the Annual General Shareholders’ Meeting:

(I) In accordance with Article 172-1 of the Company Act, a shareholder holding at least one percent

of the outstanding shares may submit a proposal in writing to the Company for an ordinary

shareholders' meeting, with a limit of one proposal and 300 words. The proposing shareholder

should attend the shareholders' meeting in person or by proxy and participate in the discussion of

the proposal.

(II) Acceptance period: From April 03, 2024 to April 12, 2024, as announced on the Market

Observation Post System in accordance with the law.

(III) The Company did not receive any shareholder proposal during the above-mentioned period of

acceptance of shareholder proposal.




